
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
ELECTRIC UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, JULY 27, 2021 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Ocean Current Energy Update by Gabe Alsenas, Director of Southeast National 
Marine Energy Center (SNMREC) at Florida Atlantic University  

B. Customer Service Presentation on Customer Payments and Service Requests 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. June 29, 2021 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. First Amendment to Agreement with Trench Limited for outdoor, single-phase, 
combined current & voltage metering class transformer units 

B. Agreement with G&W Electric Company for Three-Phase solid dielectric multiway 
switch with Automatic Transfer package 

C. Agreement with SPX Transformer Solutions for the purchase of two (2) 138kV to 26kV 
step-down power transformers 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



U.S. Department of Energy Center
and

State of Florida Center of Excellence
designated at Florida Atlantic University

SOUTHEAST NATIONAL MARINE 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CENTER 











... 

. 

100 

200 

300 

500 

100 

LONGITUDE (
0

W) 

STRAtTI � flOAIDA • 'Z7
°

N 

Mufi Nonh Vlloc ty �• 

Contour Unila: 0.01 m ,•t 

CHART OF THE 

GUL-:Ii1 STREAM 

SHOWING ITS �XIS P:N'D' LIMITS 

80
° 

R.D.8 .. ,011.1<. T. _:)0
° 



"'VERDANT POWER 

AFREMAENE 



End User

Utility

Project Developer

MHK

Manufacturer

Service Providers

Suppliers

Investors

Insurers

Regulators Certification

Bodies

Test Labs

Generation Project

Market

,,_ ______ __ 
~ ' 

I \ 
I 
I 

I 
I 

<-------------' 

\ , , _______ ,.,, 
\ I 
' , ' ,~ , ___________________________ _ 



Fostering University, Industry and Public 
Partnerships to Create an Ecosystem for Energy 

Market Development

Market 
Development

• Renewable energy project 
developers

• Independent investors

• Turbine manufacturers
• Component and sub-system 

manufacturers

• Federal, state, and local 
R&D support

SNMREC

Public 
Investment

Private 
Investment

Industry 
Technology

Energy 
Consumers 

and 
Communities

SNMREC:
• R&D and testing support to advance technology 

maturities
• Influence policy and regulatory conditions
• Build public interest and outreach
• Train workforce for new sector

• Stakeholders, like energy 
customers, regulatory agencies, 
the public, etc.













What is left to do?

• Help technology companies refine concepts into viable 
energy generating products

• Establish offshore/onshore grid infrastructure to receive 
generated power for testing and R&D

• Continue to identify and reduce barriers to project siting

• Foster local ecosystem to support future industry



Oct 2016 
Sign MOU 
with FAU

Feb 2017        
Host 
Roundtable 
with Industry 
and State 
Legislators

Mar 2018 
Economic 
Impact Study 
completed by 
Fishkind, Inc.

Feb 2019 
Preliminary 
Offshore 
Development 
and Scoping 
Plan completed 
by 3U 
Technologies

2018-2020
State 

Legislative 
Requests

Cit9r;f 
Lake Worth

--- Beach1 
LORIO sm 

LAKE WORTH BEACH 

Electric 
Utili t ies 
CITIZEN OWNED ENERGY 



• Innovative Community
• Municipal Utility
• Economic Opportunities
• Nearshore Infrastructure

• Marine Energy Leader
• Federal and State Impact
• Private Sector Engagement
• Offshore Infrastructure

City of
Lake Worth 
Beach 
FLORIDA + 

SOUTHEAST NATIONAL MARINE 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CENTER 

--



 

  

  

  

  

                

 

      

  

                      

        

                  

                     

                  

   

# of Days # of Cuts Restored % Restored NOT Restored Vacant
28 730 716 98% 14 0

Utilities Customer Service Division as of 7/1/2021 

1. OFFSITE CASH PAYMENTS (offsite Cash payments @ CVS, 7-Eleven & Family Dollar) **WalMart - fall 2021** 

2. 

3. 

4. 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Totals 

# of Payments 2,242 2,124 2,384 2,099 2,164 2,248 13,261 

$ of Payments $406,873 $342,331 $353,186 $347,167 $367,592 $417,534 $2,234,683 

# of Payments 2,349 2,241 2,320 1,856 1,876 1,934 2,060 1,984 2,061 2,253 2,186 2,283 25,403 

$ of Payments $433,080 $371,311 $359,226 $319,725 $357,607 $389,226 $440,407 $443,361 $449,560 $513,619 $452,304 $442,868 $4,972,294 

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Total: 
2021 $43,225 $19,827 $21,291 $12,467 end of JUL end of AUG end of SEP end of OCT end of NOV end of DEC end of JAN end of FEB $96,810 

2020 $10,702 $16,419 $6,961 $4,694 $14,840 $29,212 $22,303 $33,762 $36,389 $67,804 $72,564 $51,874 $367,524 + 39% 

2019 $13,615 $8,532 $8,236 $10,523 $9,985 $12,911 $21,058 $25,435 $22,649 $47,700 $29,752 $14,114 $224,511 

PAYMENTS 

2021 

2020 

COLLECTIONS - (monthly files sent to agency - 60 day delay) 

PROJECTED SERVICE DISCONNECTS (Customers Projected to be Cut - yellow reminder notices mailed out) 

SERVICE RE-CONNECT ANALYSIS (number of customers restored after being disconnected) 5. 



       

                    

               

               

              

6. RECEIVABLES AGING REPORT - as of 7/1 (net amount excluding taxes+fees+misc. services) 

TRIAL BALANCE SUMMARY (gross amounts including taxes+fees+misc.+services) 

7. PAYMENT PLANS - Payments Received (as of 7/1) 

8. UTILITY SERVICE REQUESTS (online applications + emails) 

9. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE Received (from Palm Beach County) 



MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

ELECTRIC UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, JUNE 29, 2021  

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING  

THE SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:17 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL:  Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Herman Robinson and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy (via Zoom) and Kimberly Stokes.  Also 

present were Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and Deputy 

City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: 

 

There were no additions or changes to the agenda. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. City's Net Metering Program Update 

 

Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director, spoke about the program background 

definitions, history, and legal requirements.  He explained that Net-Metering typically 

referenced the customer-owned renewable electric generation systems installed behind the 

meter on the customers’ premises which netted their electric purchases with their own 

electric production.  He stated that there were six system in 2010 when the program began 

and had grown to 156 systems currently.  He said that Resolution 34-2012 added net 

metering rates and set a size limit of 10kw and the prior commission approved changes in 

2019 mirroring those of utilities statewide such as reaffirmation of the previous system size 

limit, establishing a cap on total Kw allowed, removing the exemptions from minimum 

bills and establishing program rules and interconnection agreements.  He iterated that a cap 

was necessary as a precautionary measure based on actual experience during “island 

operations” and the city’s power plant units are not equipped to power swings the cap 

would be revisited when the second transmission line was operational.  He reported that 

the EU was rapidly approaching the cap and staff needed policy direction regarding non-

compliant installations. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding the enforcement of the signing of the interconnection 

agreements, which was required by state law. 

 

Joel Rutsky, Revenue Protection Manager, stated that the city had the documentation for 

the systems and made it very easy for the customers to sign the agreement.  He said that no 

one had objected to the agreements, some are just ignoring the notifications.  He iterated 

that any systems that were installed without a permit would have to be removed. 

 

Mayor Resch asked if the commission would give consensus to send final notices with 

large lettering and then disconnect their systems. 

 

Mr. Rutsky asked what the legal ramifications were of shutting off the systems. 



Pg. 2, Electric Utility Meeting, June 29, 2021 

 

Commissioner Malega stated that the city rules needed to be enforced and it was unfair that 

people were waiting to install systems because some had not signed the agreements. 

 

Commissioner McVoy opined that it needed to be made clear that the customer would not 

get credit for their electric power and would not be cut off from electric. 

 

City Attorney Goddeau said that she would work with Mr. Liberty and Mr. Rutsky to bring 

back a letter and press release as an agenda item. 

 

Mr. Rutsky said that there could not be any new solar customers because the 14 people 

were on the grid, but not in compliance. 

 

Mr. Liberty stated that the customers would be visited in person to get them to sign the 

agreements.  He said that the concept of a cap was neither new nor illegal; the city had a 

technical cap.  He iterated that utilities had wide latitude to disconnect a customer from the 

system. 

 

Consensus was to bring the agreement back at a future meeting. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: 

 

Deputy City Clerk Coyne read the following public comments submitted online: 

 

Emily Abbott wrote to request that residents be able to install solar systems at their homes. 

 

Vice Mayor Robinson stated that the city should be known for encouraging solar and asked if 

the cap would go away in 2022. 

 

Mr. Liberty responded that the cap would be revisited, but there would be a cap. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to approve 

the following minutes: 

A. April 27, 2021 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
There were no Consent Agenda items on the agenda. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

There were no Public Hearings on the agenda. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda. 

 

  



Pg. 3, Electric Utility Meeting, June 29, 2021 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

A. Payment of Credit and Debit Card Fees associated with customer payment of utility bills 

 

Mr. Liberty explained that there was a fee to process credit card transactions that had risen 

to a $400,000 cost to the city and was a significant expense.  He said that Franco Bellitto, 

Customer Service Manager, had been investigating a solution and found that many utilities 

and other agencies charge the customer a fee for using a credit card.  He stated that the 

EUAB favored shifting the fee to the customers. 

 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

1. Commissioner Stokes expressed concern about passing costs on to customers. 

 

Mr. Bellitto replied that some customers were using rewards cards which had higher 

fees, but customers could pay by check and not pay a fee.  He stated that any fees that 

were charged would be passed on to the customer.  He said that the cost was $3.25 per 

$500 charge. 

 

2. Commissioner Malega asked about the payment schedule and said that it was 

confusing.  She inquired about paying by electronic check. 

 

Mr. Bellitto agreed that it was confusing but the vendor insisted on having the schedule.  

He said that there would not be a fee for auto debits from a checking account, only if 

Paymentus handled the payment. 

 

3. Commissioner Stokes inquired how long the city had been using Paymentus and what 

other quotes had been received. 

 

Mr. Bellitto said that the city switched to Paymentus two years ago and was the certified 

preferred partner to Naviline. 

 

4. Commissioner Malega expressed concern about the high fees. 

 

Mr. Bellitto said that he negotiated and could not get the fee reduced.  He explained 

that the fee was based on average bill amounts and that the EUAB had given consensus 

to charge the fee. 

 

5. Commissioner McVoy inquired if the equity issue could be addressed. 

 

Mr. Bellitto stated that people could set up electronic bill pay without any additional 

charges.  He said that the new bank will do electronic transfers in the future rather than 

sending a paper check which then had to be opened by the vendor. 

 

6. Commissioner Stokes asked if there had been a survey about credit card use. 

 

Mr. Bellitto stated that there would be notices created in three languages with options 

for paying without fees if the item were approved.  He said that the notice could be put 

in every bill before the October 1 deadline so some customers could get three notices.  

He said that there was a one-time $25 discount for people who signed up for paperless 

billing and autopay. 



Pg. 4, Electric Utility Meeting, June 29, 2021 

 

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.  No one from the public commented. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve of 

Credit and Debit Card Fees associated with customer payment of utility bills. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

B. Amendment to Task Order No. 3 with TeamworkNET Inc., for additional engineering 

design services for the Main Yard Substation Control House Protection and Control Project 

 

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.  No one from the public commented. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Amendment No. 3 to Task Order No. 3 with TeamworkNET Inc., to provide additional 

engineering design services for the Main Yard Substation Control House Protection and 

Control Project at a cost not to exceed $85,190. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

C. Task Order No. 5 with TeamworkNET Inc., for engineering design services for the Main 

Yard Substation Control House Relay Protection and Controls 

 

Mr. Liberty explained that the work was spread amongst the companies that could do the 

work. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Task Order No. 5 with TeamworkNET Inc., for engineering design services for the Main Yard 

Substation Control House Relay Protection and Controls. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

D. Agreement with Milsoft Utility Solutions Inc., for software, data conversion and 

implementation of Milsoft Engineering Analysis, Outage Management System & 

Geographical Information System modules 

 

Mr. Liberty said that he tasked Mr. Bellitto with creating new technologies.  He stated that 

customers would be able to get answers to their questions through automation and that one 

day there would be integration through automation.  He spoke about IVR (integrated voice 

recognition) that would be able to identify the customer’s information and that all of the 

systems would be compatible. 

Comments/requests summary: 

 

1. Mayor Resch asked if there would be a person at the other end. 

 

Mr. Bellitto stated that he had worked with AT&T to have a natural sounding language 

in English, Spanish and Creole, to answer simple questions to free up staff time.  He 

said that there would be a way to speak with a person. 

 



Pg. 5, Electric Utility Meeting, June 29, 2021 

 

2. Commissioner Malega asked about the associated cost. 

 

Mr. Bellitto replied that the cost was $23,500 a year. 

 

Mr. Liberty stated that the service would provide faster responses and the modeling 

tool would help the engineering staff to understand what the circuits could physically 

do. 

 

3. Commissioner McVoy spoke in opposition to call centers where the operators did not 

know anything about the city and expressed skepticism about educating the customers.  

He said that technology should be used to push information out, but more live operators 

should be use. 

 

Mayor Resch stated that the system would call to inform the customer of an outage. 

 

Mr. Bellitto said that the timing could be adjusted to shorten the wait for a live person.  

He stated that the goal was to have a hybrid solution in phases with a call center for 

after hours and during emergencies. 

 

Mayor Resch asked if there were any public comments.  No one from the public commented. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson to approve 

Agreement with Milsoft Utility Solutions Inc., for software, data conversion and 

implementation of Milsoft Engineering Analysis, Outage Management System & 

Geographical Information System modules. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

Mr. Liberty thanked the commission for their ongoing support. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner McVoy to adjourn 

the meeting at 8:01 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor Robinson and Commissioners Malega, 

McVoy and Stokes.  NAYS:  None. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, Deputy City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: July 27, 2021 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: July 27, 2021 

TITLE: 

First Amendment to Agreement with Trench Limited for outdoor, single-phase, combined current 
& voltage metering class transformer units 

 
SUMMARY: 

First Amendment to Agreement with Trench Limited authorizes Trench Limited to provide 
outdoor, single-phase, combined current/voltage metering class transformers for use on the 
City’s 138kV Electric Transmission System at a cost not to exceed $200,000.  This project has 
been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In 2018, the City issued Request for Proposals (RFP 18-211) for the procurement of outdoor, 
single-phase, combined current/voltage metering class transformers for use on the City’s 138kV 
Electric Transmission System. A total of three bids were received and evaluated. Trench Limited 
was found to be most responsive and responsible bidder and offered the lowest price. The initial 
term of the Agreement was for two (2) years with two (2) additional single year renewal options. 
This First Amendment is to extend the terms for one additional year.  

Currently, the Electric Utility is working on the design and material procurement for the new 
138kV Canal Switchyard. The outdoor single-phase, combined, current/voltage metering class 
transformers will be installed at the new 138kV Canal Switchyard on the new incoming 138kV 
Transmission Lines. Their function is to measure the current and voltage on the 138kV 
transmission lines. This information is recorded in real-time and is utilized for substation 
protection relays and to monitor power supply to the City.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove First Amendment to Agreement with Trench Limited for outdoor, 
single-phase, combined current/voltage metering class transformers for use on the City’s 138kV 
Electric Transmission System at a cost not to exceed $200,000. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
First Amendment 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures $200,000 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $200,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account No. 421-6034-531-63.16, Project No. SH2001. 

 
Account Number Account Description Project 

Number 
FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-6034-531-63.16 Improve Other than 
Build/Infrastructure 

SH2001 $11,000,000 $9,804,695 -$200,000 $9,604,695 

 



Page 1 of 5 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

Outdoor Single-Phase Combined CT/PT Metering Units (Electric Utilities) 

 

 THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) to the Agreement for Goods and Services -

Outdoor Single-Phase Combined CT/PT Metering Units is made as of _______________, 2021, 

by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation of the State of 

Florida (“CITY”) and TRENCH LIMITED, a New Brunswick Corporation 

(“CONTRACTOR”). 

            WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Proposal RFP 18-211 for the procurement of 

Outdoor Single-Phase Combined CT/PT Metering Units (“RFP”); and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2018, the CITY and CONTRACTOR entered into the 

Agreement for Outdoor Single-Phase Combined CT/PT Metering Units (“Agreement”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was for two (2) years with two (2) additional 

single year renewal options; and  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR wish to amend the Agreement to extend 

the terms of the Agreement for additional one (1) year; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR submitted a revised rate schedule for the units to be 

provided under this Amendment, which rates are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein; and  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY has reviewed the increased rate schedule and determined that the 

increase is fair and reasonable; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY finds amending the Agreement as set forth herein is in the best 

interest of the CITY and serves a valid public purpose. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by each party hereto, the CITY and the 

CONTRACTOR agree to amend the Agreement, as follows: 

 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

2. Term of Agreement. The parties agree that the term of the Agreement is hereby 

extended to September 13, 2021.  

 

3.  Rate Schedule. The parties agree that the rates to be charged by the 

CONTRACTOR for the units to be provided under the Agreement are set forth in Exhibit “A”. 

 

4.        Maximum Cost. The total amount not to exceed under this Amendment shall be 

Two-Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000). The CONTRACTOR is not guaranteed that the CITY 

will purchase units up to the entire not to exceed amount. 



Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

5. Entire Agreement. The CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree that the Agreement 

and this Amendment set forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no 

promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and 

conditions contained in this Amendment may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise 

altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto. All other terms and conditions 

of the Agreement (except as amended herein) remain in full force and effect. 

 

 6. Counterparts. This Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. Either or both parties may sign this Amendment electronically or digitally and 

such signature is as valid as the original signature of such party. 

 

            7.         Scrutinized Companies. 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized 

Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  

Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the CITY may immediately terminate 

this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are 

found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is 

engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

b. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that 

it and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in 

Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector 

List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 

287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately 

terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the 

CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies 

with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 

Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in 

Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

c. The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable 

subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

d. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 

relied upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in 

regards to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the 

CITY of the same. 

f. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to 

authorize the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

 

  



Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

  





Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Exhibit “A” 



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

Quotation

To: CITY OF LAKE WORTH From: Trench Limited
Attn: PAUL NICHOLAS Name: GUSTAVO LOPEZ-BENITEZ
Email: pnicholas@lakeworthbeachfl.gov Date: JUL-01-2021
Your ref: OIF:COLW COMBI UNITS 145 KV Trench ref: 22111844 rev. 02
Subject: OIF:COLW COMBI UNITS 145 KV Page: 1 of 10

Dear Paul,

Thank you for your inquiry and your continued interest in our products.

We are pleased to submit herewith our proposal for the above mentioned project and hope it meets your
expectations.

As your reputable local partner, Trench provides the utmost in high-quality and reliable products that are individually
designed for the required performance and service life.

To address growing market demands, Trench is pleased to offer our new standard 60/66 month warranty period.
Further details are enclosed within this offer

If you have any questions, or require additional information regarding our products, please do not hesitate to contact
us anytime.

We look forward to having the opportunity to serve you soon.

Sincerely,

GUSTAVO LOPEZ-BENITEZ
Inside Sales
Trench Limited - Instrument Transformer Division

CC:
ENGINEERED POWER PRODUCTS INC
Keith Armstrong

Enclosed datasheet, drawings

z002rvvn
Gustavo name



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

PRICE TABLE

Item Material Description Qty Unit Price
USD

Total Price
USD

Delivery

20 Combined
Transformer

N5H-650-138-202S
CITY OF LAKEWORTH

8 22,650.00 181,200.00 24-26 weeks

Rated Voltage 138.0 kV , No. of Cores 1 , Ratio 1000/2000:5 ,
Accuracy 0.15B1.8 , Note 1000:5(5-200%),2000:5(1-100%) ,

PRICES ARE EXCLUSIVE OF VALUE ADDED TAX, IF APPLICABLE

GENERAL NOTES
Rev 1 - Quantity increased from 4 to 8 units by customer request, lead time updated based on Winter shutdown,
price updated based on cost update. Validity extended for 30 days. 06/25/21, G. Lopez

Rev 2 - Ratio updated from 600/1200:5 to 1000/2000:5 A and price updated. Validity extended for 30 days.
07/01/21, G. Lopez



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

COMMERCIAL CONDITIONS
Place of manufacture within the Trench Group will be determined by Trench Group at the time of order placement.

Validity: Proposal is valid until 2021-07-30
Prices are firm for shipment on/or before 2022-03-30

Delivery: Delivery is based on receipt and acceptance of official order
and does not include any additional time required for approval documentation,
FAT/witness testing or inspection (if required by purchaser). Lead time could be
improved at time of order entry, depending on plant loading.

The worldwide outbreak of the coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) may affect usual
business activities and/or the execution of work under this offer. As the impacts from
COVID-19 are continuously changing, their impacts on this offer are unknown at this
time. To avoid potentially unnecessary contingency, matters such as procurement lead-
time, delivery date, resources, and schedule are provided without consideration of
impacts from COVID-19 other than as specifically set out in this offer. Trench is closely
monitoring the development of COVID-19 and its associated impacts, and will
endeavor to inform you of the impacts that COVID-19 has or may have on this offer. If
required to overcome the consequences directly or indirectly caused by the outbreak of
COVID-19, Trench reserves the right to adjust its obligations related to schedule, price,
or any other reasonably required adjustment of this offer, including postponing or
providing partial deliveries to the extent Trench’s ability to supply or deliver is impacted.

The foregoing provision shall form an integral part of any contract resulting from this
offer and shall supersede any other terms and conditions of the Contract which may
otherwise be applicable to the subject matter described in the provision.

NOTE ON DRAWING APPROVAL: Trench’s quotation includes drawings which are
technically and dimensionally aligned with our offer. To expedite drawing approval,
purchaser may indicate the quotation drawings are approved for manufacturing by
submitting signed copies of the quotation drawings to Trench marked as “approved”
along with the purchase order. Any changes or comments included by purchaser will
be accepted by Trench, provided that such comments do not fundamentally change the
design or offer (e.g. are limited to either changes to the nomenclature or the addition of
reference notes).

Freight Terms: DDP  FL, US
According to INCOTERMS, ICC publication no. 715, 2010 edition.

Payment Terms: within 30 days Due net

Testing: Price includes Routine Testing according to the quoted standards only. Type test
reports of similar units can be provided in lieu of performing type tests upon request at
no charge.
Actual type tests, if required, would be charged extra. If type testing is required,
delivery dates may be affected.

Packing: Appropriate packaging for the shipping method is included.

Warranty: 60 months in service ,maximum 66 months from delivery
Warranty only applies to products manufactured and supplied by Trench Group.



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

Conditions of Sale: Agreement for Goods and Services signed Sep 6th, 2018

Retention Clause: Trench Limited shall not be obligated to fulfill this agreement if such fulfillment is
prevented by any impediments arising out of national or international foreign trade or
customs requirements or any embargoes or other sanctions.

Liquidated Damages: Not applicable.

Performance or Warranty
Security:

The Trench proposal does not include for the provision of any security or bank
guarantee. If one is subsequently required, the specific details of the Security /
Guarantee have to be agreed by Trench Limited and the additional cost will be for the
customer's account.

Additional Comments: Erection, installation, training of personnel as well as site test procedure is not included
in our supply.
Special tools for erection and putting into service are not necessary.
Special spare parts are normally not necessary because the quoted apparatus are
practically maintenance free.

Drawings and Literature: Supplier reserves all titles and property rights and rights originating from copyright on
cost estimates, drawings and other documents. Such may not be disclosed to third
parties without prior consent of the supplier. Contractual language: English.

Compliance: Compliance with legal regulations is an integral part of all business processes at
Trench. Possible infringements can be reported to our HelpDesk “Tell us” at
www.trench-group.com.

Compliance with Export
Control Regulations:

1. If Purchaser transfers goods (hardware and/ or software and/ or technology as
well as corresponding documentation, regardless of the mode of provision)
delivered by Supplier or works and services (including all kinds of technical
support) performed by Supplier to a third party, Purchaser shall comply with all
applicable national and international (re-) export control regulations. In any event,
Purchaser shall comply with the (re-) export control regulations of Canada, of the
Federal Republic of Germany, of the European Union and of the United States of
America, to the extent permissible under Canadian law.

2. If required to conduct export control checks, Purchaser, upon request by
Supplier, shall promptly provide Supplier with all information pertaining to the
particular end customer, the destination and the intended use of goods, works
and services provided by Supplier, as well as any export control restrictions
existing.

3. Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless Supplier from and against any
claim, proceeding, action, fine, loss, cost and damages arising out of or relating to
any noncompliance with export control regulations by Purchaser, and Purchaser
shall compensate Supplier for all losses and expenses resulting thereof. This
provision does not imply a change in burden of proof.

4. Supplier shall not be obligated to fulfill this agreement if such fulfillment is
prevented by any impediments arising out of national or international foreign
trade or customs requirements or any embargoes or other sanctions.

Default of Acceptance: If the Purchaser, for reasons attributable to it, does not take over the delivered goods,
Supplier shall be entitled to present the bill after notification of readiness for delivery.
The agreed times allowed for payment shall immediately commence and the goods
shall be stored by Supplier at the risk of the Purchaser.



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

Trench Limited
Confidential / Proprietary
Information

This document contains information confidential and proprietary to Trench Limited.
Receipt of this document is an acknowledgement of a confidential relationship between
the recipient and Trench Limited with respect to the document itself and any
subsequent communication relative to it. This document is to be used solely for the
purpose for which it was furnished and is to be returned or destroyed when no longer
required. Neither this document nor any information obtained therefrom is to be
published, reproduced, transmitted, distributed, disclosed or used otherwise in whole or
in part without the written consent of Trench Limited. If you are not the intended
recipient of this document, you are hereby notified that you received in error, and that
any review, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of this document in whole or in
part is strictly prohibited. If you have received this document in error, please destroy
the document or contact Trench Limited to arrange for its return.

Price Reservation Clause Trench's pricing is subject to adjustment for the impact of any new or modified taxes,
duties, tariffs or equivalent measures imposed by any local or foreign governmental
authority which is applicable to our offering, including any portions or components
contained within the offering, including those announced and/or implemented on or
after May 31, 2018.
If any change to any law, rule, regulation, taxes, customs, duties order, code, standard
or requirement, (including the interpretation of the same) impacts the Seller’s
obligations or performance under this Contract, the Seller shall be entitled to a change
order for an equitable adjustment in prices and times for performance to the extent
such change impacts the Seller’s obligations or performance under this Contract.



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

TECHNICAL COMMENTS

Steel supporting structures, adapter plates, mounting hardware for the offered equipment, line- and grounding
connectors as well as junction boxes are not included in our supply.

Our standard manuals as well as the following drawings are included in our supply:
- outline drawing with details of primary terminal, grounding terminal and mounting holes
- wiring diagram
- rating plates
- secondary terminal box

Painting of transformers:
All iron parts are hot-dip galvanized or of stainless steel.  Other metal parts are of corrosion resistant cast aluminum
and additional painting is not necessary.

All terminal box / enclosures meet the degree of protection IP54.
PT’s type UT5: All metal parts are of marine grade powder coated aluminum (dome) or powder coated steel (tank).



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

N5H-650-138-202S

Trench proposal #.....22111844 Item #.........000020

Quantity 8.000

Product Type N5H-650-138-202S
Standard IEEE C57.13

Altitude above sea level 3,300 FT
Temperature range Min. -30 °C
Temperature range Max. 40 °C
Wind speed maximum 80 mph
Seismic specification N/A

Rated Voltage (Between Phases) 138.0 kV
Max. Voltage (Between Phases) 145.0 kV
Frequency 60 Hz
1 Minute Dry Withstand 275 kV
10 Second Wet Withstand 275 kV
Basic Impulse Insulation Level 650 kV
Rated Primary Current 2,000 A
Thermal Rating Factor 2.0/1.0
Short Time Thermal Current 90 KA/1S
Dynamic Current (kA/Peak) 225 KA/PEAK
Primary Voltage 80,500 V
Over Voltage Factor 1.73/60s
Over Voltage Factor Continuous 1.1

Number of secondaries 2
VT Secondary Winding Ratio 700/1200:1

Max Thermal Burden 4,000 VA



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

Sec. voltage full winding 1 115 V
Sec. voltage tap winding 1 67.08
Winding1 Accuracy 0.15
Winding1 Burden WXYZ

Sec.Voltage full winding 2 115 V
Sec. voltage tap winding 2 67.08
Winding2 Accuracy 0.15
Winding2 Burden WXYZ

CT Ratio 1000/2000:5
CT Ratio Type Dual Ratio
No. of Cores 1

CT Core 1 Ratio 1000/2000:5
Core1 Accuracy 0.15B1.8
Core 1 Note 1000:5(5-200%),2000:5(1-100%)

Type of Insulator Porcelain
Color of Insulator Grey
Creepage 131.31 IN
Strike Distance 54.38 IN

Dimensions as per Drawing N5H-650-138
Net Weight 1,370 LB
Gross Weight 1,420 LB
Crate Length 36 IN
Crate Width 36 IN
Crate Height 120 IN
Crate Volume 90.00 FT3

Primary Terminal Tin plated Al NEMA 4 holes
Primary Connector N/A
Grounding Terminal Stainless steel NEMA 2 holes



Trench Limited Tel: 416 751 8570
1865 Clements Road 24/7 Toll free: 1844 873 6241
Pickering, Ontario Fax: 416 751 6952
Canada L1W 3R8 Email: gustavo.lopez@trench-group.com
Quote # 22111844
Confidential

Grounding Connector N/A
Secondary Terminal Type(CT) Stud type
Secondary Terminal Type(VT) Stud type

Nameplate Stainless Steel
Type of LV BOX Stainless Steel
Type of Dome Standard Aluminum
Type of Tank Stainless Steel
Heater N/A
Secondary Protection N/A
Damping Pads N/A
Pressure Gauge N/A





EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: July 27, 2021 

TITLE: 
Agreement with G&W Electric Company for Three-Phase solid dielectric multiway switch with 
Automatic Transfer package 

 
SUMMARY: 
Agreement authorizes G&W Electric Company to provide a Three-Phase solid dielectric 
multiway switch with Automatic Transfer package for the City’s Electric Utility at a cost not to 
exceed $93,559.  This project has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility 
System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold 
in November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 21-205) to provide bids for a Three-Phase solid dielectric 
multiway switch with Automatic Transfer package for the City’s Electric Utility. A total of three 
bids were received and evaluated. G&W Electric Company was found to be most responsive 
and responsible bidder and offered the lowest price.  

The three-phase multiway switch allows for dual feed and dual output with automatic switching 
capabilities. The switch will be used in underground feeder applications in the downtown area 
offering dual power feeds with automated switching providing greater reliability to our customers.  

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement G&W Electric Company, for Three-Phase solid 
dielectric multiway switch with Automatic Transfer package for the City’s Electric Utility at a cost 
not to exceed $93,559. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis  
G&W Electric Company Agreement  



IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures $93,559 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $93,559 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account No. 421-6034-531-63.15, Project No. SH2136. 

 
Account Number Account Description Project 

Number 
FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-6034-531-63.15 Improve Other than 
Build / Infrastructure 

SH2136 $550,000 $550,000 -$93,559 $456,441 

 





















































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
ELECTRIC UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: July 27, 2021 

TITLE: 

Agreement with SPX Transformer Solutions for the purchase of two (2) 138kV to 26kV step-
down power transformers 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement authorizes SPX Transformer Solutions to provide two (2) 138kV to 26kV step-down 
power transformers for the City’s Electric Utility at a cost not to exceed $3,500,000.  This project 
has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Project (SHRIP) for which bonds were sold in November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Currently, the Electric Utility is working on the design and material procurement for the new 
138kV Canal Switchyard and Canal 8-Bay Distribution Substation. The new Canal 8-Bay 
substation will receive 138kV power from the new 138kV switchyard and requires two (2) new 
138kV to 26kV step-down power transformers.  The Canal Distribution Substation provides 
electric power directly to approximately 5,800 customers via three 26kV circuits (6001, 6003 and 
6004), which are currently undergoing significant upgrades for reliability improvements and are 
among the City’s electric utility’s top 10 poorest performing circuits. The Canal Distribution 
Substation also serves as Palm Beach State College’s alternate source of 4kV electric power 
supply, which is currently being converted to 26kV as well. 

The Canal Distribution Substation also serves as a back-up via an “express feeder” linking it to 
the 26kV Main Yard Substation on College Street, thereby carrying an additional 8,552 residents 
and business owners when needed in the event of an emergency or during planned 
maintenance on the system. The “express feeder” serves to move electric power from east to 
west, or west to east in our service territory in the event of an outage on a portion of the 138kV 
transmission system and has been utilized in this manner multiple times over recent years.    

In order to provide for improved reliability to customers within the City, the neighboring Village 
of Palm Springs, and in un-incorporated areas of Palm Beach County served by our electric 
utility, the new Canal 8-Bay Distribution Substation includes provisions for two (2) 138kV to 26kV 
step-down power transformer providing for redundancy in the event of a failure of the existing 
single transformer or periodic maintenance without pushing equipment to critical limits. 

On, January 26, 2019 at 06:07 am, the TPTL-1 Transformer in the Main Substation failed 
suddenly and without warning, immediately disrupting power to 13,200 customers. The City 
worked closely with various organizations to locate and obtain a new 138kV to 26kV step-down 
power transformer expeditiously as lead times at that time were approximately 12 to 18 months. 
Jacksonville Electric Authority (JEA) had a multi-year agreement with SPX Transformer 
Solutions and had a 138kV to 26kV transformer in production which they quickly offered to the 
City. Through negotiations, JEA was willing and able to release their order to the City and the 
transformer was purchased late-production under the JEA-SPX piggy-pack Agreement. In April 



 
  

of 2019, the new transformer was received, tested, commissioned and placed into service on 
April 17, 2019. The timing and installation of the new TPTL-1 transformer was critical to the City 
as the unit was received, installed and placed into service just prior to the summer months when 
peak loading occurs. To date the unit has performed flawlessly with no issues. 

City’s Electric Utility has been working closely with SPX Transformer Solutions to finalize the 
attached Agreement. The challenges revolved around the unit pricing under the original JEA 
Agreement and a 5% maximum allowable price escalation per year. The results of current 
market conditions led to an increase in commodity prices and resulted in an increase in the 
current day unit price which exceeded the allowable price escalation provision in the JEA 
Agreement. The Electric Utility has engaged in extensive due diligence of SPX’s proposed 
increased unit prices and determined that the increased unit prices are still competitive in the 
market and that a separate competitive procurement process by the City will not likely result in 
lower unit prices, a better product or more favorable terms and conditions.   

The Electric Utility is requesting under Section 2-112 (g), of the City’s Procurement Code a 
waiver of the competitive procurement procedures that it is not practicable or advantageous for 
the City to pursue a separate competitive procurement process. Under this Agreement, the 
Electric Utility is requesting to purchase two (2) 138kV to 26kV step-down power transformers 
with the option to purchase one (1) additional unit in Fiscal Year 2022. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement SPX Transformer Solutions for the purchase of two (2) 
138kV to 26kV step-down power transformers at a cost not to exceed $3,500,000 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 
 
Capital Expenditures $2,205,000 $1,295,000 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $2,205,000 $1,295,000 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account No. 421-6034-531-63.15, Project No. SH2113. 

 
Account Number Account Description Project 

Number 
FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-6034-531-63.15 Improve Other than 
Build/Infrastructure 

SH2113 $6,500,000 $5,740,000 -$2,205,000 $3,535,000 

 
















	Top
	A.	Ocean Current Energy Update by Gabe Alsenas, Director of Southeast National Marine Energy Center (SNMREC) at Florida Atlantic Universit
	Ocean Current Presentation

	B.	Customer Service Presentation on Customer Payments and Service Requests
	Presentation

	A.	June 29, 2021 minutes
	062921 EU Minutes

	A.	First Amendment to Agreement with Trench Limited for outdoor, single-phase, combined current & voltage metering class transformer units
	Trench Staff Report
	First Amendment

	B.	Agreement with G&W for 3 Phase Pad Mounted Switch with Automatic Transfer package
	G&W Staff Report
	G&W Agreement

	C.	Agreement with SPX Transformer Solutions for the purchase of two (2) 138kV to 26kV step-down power transformers
	SPX Transformer Staff Report
	Agreement

	Bottom

